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NOTICE OF THIRTIETH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTIETH ANNUAI GENERAL MEETING of the
Members of the INDIAN INFOTECH & SOF"TWARE LTD, will be held at the Registered office
of the Company at D-114, Crystal Plaza, Link Road, Opp. Inflnity Mall, Andheri (W),
Mumbai  . -  400 053 on Fr ida5.  28 'h September 2Ol2 ar  4.3O p.m. to  t ransact  the fo l lowing
business.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Profit and Loss Account of the Company for the
year ended 31"t March, 2012 and Balance Sheet as at that date, Cash Flow
statement for the year ended 31"t March, 2012 and Report of the Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint M/s. Sanjay N. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditor
of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorize the Board
of Directors or Audit Committee thereof to flx their remuneration.

'RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. Sanjay N. Sl-rah & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai be and is hereby re-appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company, to
hold the office from the conclusion of this meeting, until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed to
between the Statutory Auditors and the Board."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or rvithout modihcation(s), the follorving
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED TIIAT Shri Ruchir Mohunta, rvho was appointed on 25 / 1O /2Oll as an
Additional Director of the Company in terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act,

1956 and whose term of Office expires at this Annual General Meeting and in
respect of him the Company has received a notice in writing along with the requisite

deposit of Rs. 500 from a Member under Section 257 of tine Companies Act, 1956, to
proposing Shri Ruchir Mohunta, as a candidate for the Office of Directors of the

Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire
by rotation."

To consider ancl if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifrcation(s), the follorving

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT Shri Ruchir Mohunta who was appointed on 25llOI2OII as an

Managing Director of the Company ar-rd whose terms of Office expires at this Annual

General Meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 269 read \'vith

Schedule XIII of the companies Act, 1956 and sub to provisions of Sections 198,

309, 314 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 1956 and

subject to provisions of article of association of the Company, Shri Ruchir Mohunta,

be and is here by appointed as Managir-rg Director of the Company for a further

period of 28th September, 2012 to 30th September, 2015.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT I'ris terms and conditions of appointment as Managing

Director and remuneration rvill be decided b5r tlle Board in accordance $'ith Section

198 of the Companies Act, 1956,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or lvitholrt modificatiorr(s), the follo$'ing

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

lndian Infotech and Solh,vare Ltd.
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'RESOLVED THAT Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma, rvho u,as appointed on25llOl2OII
as an Additional Director of the Company in terms of Section 260 of the Companies
Act, 1956 and whose term of Office expires at this Annual General Meeting and in
respect of him the Company has received a notice in writing along with the requisite
deposit of Rs. 5OO from a Member under Section 257 of t]ne Companies Act, 1956, to
proposing Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma as a candidate for the Office of Directors of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire
bJ' rotation. "

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED TIIAT Ms. Deepa Dalmia, rvho was appointed ot 17 ll2l2QlI as an
Additional Director of the Company in terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act,
1956 and rvhose term of Office expires at this Annual General Meeting and in
respect of her the Company has received a notice in writing along with the requisite
deposit of Rs. 500 from a Member under Section 257 of tlne Companies Act, 1956, to
proposing Ms. Deepa Dalmia as a candidate for the Office of the Directors of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company liable to retire
by rotation."

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the follo$/ing
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

(RESOLVED THAT Ms. Varsha Murarka, who was appointed on 1410212012 as an
Additional Director of the Company in terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act,
1956 and whose term of Office expires at this Annual General Meeting and in
respect of her the Company has received a notice in writing along rvith the requisite
deposit of Rs. 5OO from a Member under Section 257 of tlne Companies Act, 1956, to
proposing Ms. Varsha Murarka as a candidate for the Office of the Directors of the
Company, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company liable to retire by
rotation."

Registered office:
D - 1 14, Crystal Plaza,
New Link Road,
Opp. Infinity Ma1l,
Andher i  (w)  Mumbai-  400 053

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Indian Infotech & Software Ltd

sd/ -
Ruchir Mohunta
Managing Director
Date:  Aug 27 ,  2Ql2
Place: Mumbai

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a prcxy to attend and to
vote on a poll instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the

Company. Proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company not later
48 hours before the meeting.

2. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 17 3(2) of the Companies Act, 1956

relating to the special Business to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their addresses'

4. Members desiring to submit mandates, to lodge transfer deed for shares are

requestecl to forward the same so as to reach the Company's Registrars, M/s Sharex

Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd., Unit No 1, Llrthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool,

endheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai-4ooo72 on or before 24th septembel,

2072. The Company will not be in a position to act upon any document, rvhich is

D.a*goln*-
lndian Infotech and Software Ltd.
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5. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain
closed from 24th September, 2Ol2 to 28h September, 2012 (both days inclusive).

6. Members are requested to quote their Registered Folio Nos. on all correspondence
with the Company.

7. Members are requested to send their queries to the Company, if any on Accounts at
least 10 days before the Meeting.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section L73(21 ot the Companies Act, 1956
setting out all material facts relating to special business:

ITEM NO. 3

Shri Ruchir Mohunta, who was appointed on 25 I lO l2Oll as an Additional Director and as
per section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 holds office up to the date of the this Annual
General Meeting of the Company. In terms of Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, the
Companl, has received notice in rvriting along with a deposit of Rs. 500/- from one of its
Members signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Shri Ruchir Mohunta, for
the office of Director.

Accordingly, your Directors recommend the resolution for appointing Shri Ruchir Mohunta,
as a Director of the Company, for the approval of the Members.

Save and except Shri Ruchir Mohunta, none of the Directors is interested or concerned in
the above resolution.

ITEM NO. 4

Shri Ruchir Mohunta u'ho was appointed on 25lI0l2aI2 as an Managing Director of the
Company and whose terms of Office expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respect
of him Shri Kamal nayan Sharma proposed the name of Shri Ruchir Mohunta, as a
candidature for the appointment as Managing Director of the Company in terms of Sectron
269 read with Schedule XIII of the companies Act, 1956 and sub to provisions of Sections
198, 309, 314 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 1956 and
subject to provisions of article of association of the Company, signifying his intention to
propose Shri Ruchir Mohunta, as a candidature for the post of Managing Director of the
Company for the period of 3 year from this Annual General Meeting of the Company.

And his terms ard conditions of appointment as Managing Director and remuneration rvill
be decided by the Board in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Accordingly, your Directors recommend the resolution for appointing Shri Ruchir Mohuuta,
as a Managing Director of the Company, for the approval of the Members:

Save and except Shri Ruchir Mohunta, none of the Directors is interested or concerned in
the above resolution,

ITEM NO. 5

Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma, who was appointed on 25l70l2Oll as an Additional Director
and as per section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 holds office up to the date of the forth
coming Annual General Meeting of the Company. In terms of Section 257 of tlne Companies
Act, 1956, the Company has received notice in rvriting along with a deposit of Rs. 500/-
from one of its Members signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Sl-rri Kamal
Nayan Sharma, for the office of Director.

lndian Infotech and Soft\ilare Ltd. lndian lnfotech and Sofuvare Ltd.
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Accordingly, your Directors recommend the resolution for appointing Shri Kamal Nayan
Sharma, as a Director of the Compaly, for the approval of the Members.

Save and except Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma, none of the Directors is interested or concerned
in the above resolution.

/
ITEM NO. I

Ms. Deepa Dalmia, who was appointed on 77 l12l20lI as an Additional Director and as per
section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 holds office up to the date of the forth coming
Annual General Meeting of the Company. In terms of Section 257 of the Companies Act,
1956, the Company has received notice in rvriting along with a deposit of Rs. 500/ from
one of its Members signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Ms. Deepa Dalmia,
for the office of Director.

Accordingly, your Directors recommend the resolution for appointing Ms. Deepa Dalmia, as
a Director of the Company, for the approval of the Members.

Save and except Ms. Deepa Dalmia, none of the Directors is interested or concerned in the
above resolution.

ITEM No.T

Ms. Varsha Murarka, rvho was appointed on 14l02l2OI7 as an Additional Director and as
per section 260 of tLre Companies Act, 1956 holds office up to the date of the forth coming
Annual General Meeting of the Company. In terms of Section 257 of the Companies Act,
1956, the Company has received notice in writing along with a deposit of Rs. 500/- from
one of its Members signifying his intention to propose the candidature of Ms. Varsha
Murarka, for the office of Director.

Accordingly, your Directors recommend the resolution for appointing Ms. Varsha Murarka, 
'

as a Director of the Company, for the approval of the Members.

Save and except Ms. Varsha Murarka, none of the Directors is interested or concerned tn
the above resolution.

The information required to be provided under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered
into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges regarding the Directors rvho are proposed to
be reappointed is given hereunder:

Profile of the Directors:
(r)

1. Name ofthe Director: Ruchir Mohunta
2. Age:33 Years,  DOB - 0311111979.
3. Qualifications: B.Com (Honours) graduate from St. Xaviers's Co11ege, Calcutta

University.
4. Experience: lO years Experience in Administration & Finance.
5. Shareholding in the Company: NIL
6. Other Ditectorships:
7. Committee Details:

No membership in any Committee.
(II}

1. Name ofthe Director: Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma
2.  Agez 39 year ,  DOB -031O911973.

3. Qualifrcations: B.Com (Honours) graduate.
4. Experience: 13 years Experience in Investment & Finalce.
5. Shareholding in the ComPanY: NIL
6. Other Directorships: No other Directorship.
7. Committee Details:

1. Member of Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance comrnittee of Indian Infotech &

Indian In E Stltif5fd fifl lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

Aulhorisad Slonataruflirq,.r^.
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2. Member of Audit Committee of Indian Infotech & Software Limited.

Name of the Director: Ms. Deepa Dalmia,
Age: 26 Years DOB - 18/05/ 1986.
Qualification: B. Com graduate.
Experience: 7 years Experience in the field Administration & Finalce.
Share Holding in the Company: NIL
Other Directorship: NIL
Committee Details:
1. Member of the Audit Committee of Indian Infotech & Software Limited
2. Member of the Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Committee of Indian Infotech &
Software Limited

Name of the Director: Ms. Varsha Murarka
Age:27 Years, DOB - 06/08/ 1985.
Qualification:
Chartered Accountant (C.A).
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia
B. Com graduate from Shri Shikshayatan College, in 2OO7 Calcrttta University

4. Experlence: 7 years Experience in the field. of Finqne.4 NL< '

5. Shareholding in the Compaay: NIL
6. Other Directorship: M/ s. Acs Insurance Broking Limited
7. Committee Details:

1. Chairman of the dit Committee of Indian Infotech and Software Limited

2. Chairman of the Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievance Committee of Indian
Infotech & Software Limited.

t .
2 .
3 .
4.
o .

6.

1 .
2 .
3 .

Registered office:
D - ll4, Crysta1 Plaza,
New Link Road,
Opp. Infinity Mall,
Andheri (W) Mumbai- 400 053

For and on behalf of the Board
For Indian Infotech & Software Ltd

sd/-
Ruchir Mohunta
Managing Director
Date:  Aug 27 ,  2Ol2
Place: Mumbai

lndian lnfotech and Sofu/are Ltd'
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS

The Management of INDIAN lNForEcH & SOFTWARE LIMITED in its Analysis Report has
highlighted the performance and outlook of the Company in order to comply with the
requirement of corporate Governance as laid down in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.
Horvever, investors and readers are cautioned that this discussion contains certain forward
Iooking statements that involve risk and uncertainties.

OVERVIEW
The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 1956, guidelines issued by Securities and Excl-range Board of India (SEBI)
ancl Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India. Our management accepts
responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements, as rvell as for
various estimates and judgments used therein. The estimates and judgments relating to the
financial statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so that the
financial statements reflect in a true and fair manner the form and substance of
transactions, arrd reasonably present our state of affairs, profits and cash flows for the year.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPIIIENTS

The Company is a registered NBFC and it has been periodically filing all the returns as
required under the NBFC regulations. Further, the Company has not accepted an1. dspe.i1.
{ lnm tha  nr rh l in

The certificate of registration as an NBFC is prevalent on the date of signing this report and
the Company has not received any notice in this regard from any other statutory authority.

The Company has invested into share and securities and the funds deployed so far is out of
its own account and the Share Capital Reserues and Share Premium Account.

India is a leading Country in development of Software which are used for different
applications. Being a sunrise sector there is vast scope for computer education. The
Company is providing consultancJr services in this field. The management is exploring new
areas of business opportunities to expand its business.

Changing economic and business conditions and rapid technological innovation are creating
an increasingly competitive market environment that is driving corporations to transform
their operations. Consumers of products and services are increasingly demanding
accelerated delivery times and lower prices. Companies are focusing on their core
competencies and are using outsourced technolog/ service providers to adequately address
their needs.

The role of technolog' has evolved from supporting corporations to transforming them.
There is an increasing need for highly skilled technologz professionals in the markets in
which we operate. India is a leading Country in development of Software w1'rich are used for
different applications. Being a sunrise sector there is vast scope for computer education
The Company is providing consultancy services in these field. The management is exploring
new areas of business opportunities to expand its business.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

We believe our competitive strengths include:
. Leadership in sophisticated solutions that enable our clients to optimize the

efficiency of their business.
. Commitment to superior quality and process execution
. Strong brand and long-standing client relationships.
. Status as an employer of choice.
o Ability to scale,
. Innovation and leadership.

lndian lnfotech and Soft\flare Ltd,
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Authorised Signatory/Director
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The management looks with optimism about the growth in its business. There are no
perceived threats to the business of the Company.

OUTLOOK, RISKS AND CONCERNS

This section contains fonvard - looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our
actual results could differ materiallv from those anticipated in these statements.

As the industrial and economic growth of the country is shoq'ing steady improvement. There
is no perceived risk ar-rd concern in this area of business and there is an ample scope for
grorvth in India itself.

Fonvard looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of the
future events that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual future results and trend
may differ materially from historical results, depending on variety of factors. There risk and
concerns faced by the Company a1'e similar to those faced by any grorving organization 1n
today dynamic jndustr ia l  and economic scenar io.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company ensures adherence to all Internal Control policies and procedures as well as
compliance with all regulatory guidelines. The adequacy of internal controls is revierved by
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

The Company's internal control systems are adequate, considering size and nature of
operation of the Company, to meet regulatory/ statutory requirements assure recording of
all transactions and repoft reliable and timely financial information. Additionally, it also
provides protection against misuse or loss of any of the company assets.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under Report the Company has earned an income of Rs 42,73,5641 as
against Rs. 12,65,9601- in the previous year ended 31st March, 2011- The profit/(Loss)
before tax was Rs. 5,38,417-/- as against the loss of Rs. (Rs. 1,60,75,782/ ) in the previous
year ended 31"t March, 2011. The net Profit/ (Loss) after tax during the year $'as Rs

7,05,+tz 1- as against loss of Rs. (Rs. 1,60,75,782/-) in the previous year ended 31$ March,

2017.

DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATION FRONT

With the integration of markets and apptication of lT on wider scale, there has been a sea-

change in the way the businesses are conducted today. The industry needs to update itself
with iuch changing requirements. one of the ways of meeting this task is to equip the

personnel working in the industry rvith the skills and knowledge of the latest. The Company

is endeavoring to strengthen its man power.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

statements in this Managelrent Discussion and Analysis describing the courpanl' 's

objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be 'forward - looking

statements, within the mealing of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results

could differ materially from those expressed or implied. The Company undertakes no

obligation to publicty update or revise any forward looking statements, whether as a result

of new information, future events, or otherwise. Readers are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on this forward looking statenents that speak only as of their dates

Indian Infotech and Softwafe Ltd.

L<
AL:thori irector

PLACE: MUMBAI Indian lnfoteAr and Sotrre LU.
\;*-y,- Du;

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF T}IE BOARD'
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DATE : August 27th, 2OL2

SOTII ANNUAT REPORT 2OIL-2O72

MANAGING DIRECTOR

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their THIRTTETH ANNUAT. REpoRT on the
business and operations of the Company for the I'g31 ended 31"t March,2OI2.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS;
In Lacs

31$ March ,  2012 31"t  March,  201 I
Income from sales & Other Sources
Depreciation
Net Profit/ (Loss) before Ta-\arion
Provision for Ta-ration
Excess Provision for Income TeLx
( written back)
Deferred Ta-xation Assets
Profit/ (Loss) after Ta-ration.
Add: balance b/f from previous year
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

42.74
0.45
5 . 3 8
r .64

0 . 1 1
3 . 6 3

(146.s3)
( 1 3 8 . 1 s )

12.66
o . 2 7

( 1 6 0 . 7 6 )

o . r 2
( 1 6 0 . 8 8 )

t 4 . 3 4
(1,+6.53)

2. OPERATIONS:

During the year under Report the Company has earned an incotne of
Rs. 42,73,564 as against Rs. 12,65,960/- in the previous year ended 3l"t March,
2011. The profit/(Loss) before tax rvas Rs. 5,38,417 as against the loss of (Rs.
1,60,75,7821-)  in  the prev ious year  ended 3 l " tMarch,  2011.  The net  Prof i t / (Loss)
atter ta-x during the year was Rs. 3,63,417 as against loss of (Rs. 1,60,87,52al,J n
the previous year ended 31st March, 201 1 .

3. CHANGE OF MANGEMNET : During the year previous promoters of the Company,
M/s Chemo Pharma Laboratories Limited and M/s Shree Consultation & Services
Private Limited (Collectively referred as bromoter group') and collectively holding
26,17,050 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, representing 60.46%o of the
total paid-up equity/voting share capital, of the Company has entered into a Share
Purchase Agreement (SPA) on May 20,2011 with the present promoter Group to
acquire 26,17,050 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, representing 60.4670
of the total paid-up equity/voting share capital and acquired the management control
of the Company . The Present Management pursuant to StrBI takeover Code, 2011
gave a Public announcement for Acquisition of shares of the Company from the
public on May 24th, 2011. The Open Offer closed on September 296, 2011and on
October 25rh, 2011 management of the Company has been changed and new
management came in to force.

The Present promoters of the company consist of M/s Jayanti Prime Softu'are
Advisory Pvt .  L td. .  Dhanvarsha Advisory Serv ices Pvt .  L td. .  Generosi ty  Share Trading
Pvt. Ltd., Mahamaya Financial Consultants Pvt. Ltd. and controlled by Mr Ruchir
Mohunta and Mr Kamal Nayan Sharma (Directors)

4. DIRECTORS:

During the year under review the follolving director's due to preoccupation and
because of the change of management resigned from the Board of the company:

Shri Surendra Rao, Director of the Company, Shri G.K. Joshi, Director of the
Company and Shri R. M. Khandelu'al, Director of the Conpany resigned from the
Board on 25lIOl2OI1, Shri N. K. Pareek, director ofthe Company lesigned from the
Board on O2lI2l2O11, Shri Shyam Sundar Sharma, Director of the Company
resigned from the Board on 17 I 12 l2OI I and Shri Suresh Chandra Sharma, Director
ofthe Compan;' resigned from the Board on 141Q212012.

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd' Indian Infotech and SofilvareLtd.

II> =-tp ,&U*;
Indian Infotech anO Sofrrvare Lid.
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The Board appointed to Shri Ruchir Mohunta, as an Additional Director of the

/Company, Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma as an Additional Director of the Company
and Shri Suresh Chandra Sharma as an Additional Director of the Coampny on
25lIO 12011, Shri Shyam Sundar Sharma as an Additional Director on 02l12l2012,
Ms. Deepa Dalmia, as an Additional Director of the Company on 77 I 121201-l &,
Ms.Varsha Murarka as an additional Director of the Company on 1.410212072.

Shri RUCHIR MOHUNTA appointed as Managing Director of the company u'ith effect
f rom 251 lO /2077.

DTVIDEND:

Due to inadequate Profits the Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for
the year under review.

6. SUBDWISION OF SHARES:

During the 5,ear under review the stock of the company *'as split into face value of
Rs 1 / - each to give adequate liquidity in the market and allow the small
sl-rareholders to hold the shares in small denomination.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT OF COMPAI{Y:

The Directors are glad to inform that as per section 391 & 393 of the companies Act,
1956 entered into a scheme of arrangement i.e. scheme of merger of M/s Niki Metal
Co. Limited and M/s. Lambodar Nirmit Limited rvith Indian Infotech and Soft\'!'are
Limited and preferential allotment of shares to specified investors. The Hon'ble High
Court Bombay sanctioned the scheme of arrangement on 04lOS l2072.

AUDITORS:s

M/s Sanjay N. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, are to be re-appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office until the conclusion of next

Annual General Meeting, to act as Statutory Auditor ofthe Company The Company
has received confirmation from them that the appointment, if made, would be within
the limits prescribed Uls.22a(lB) ofthe Companies Act, 1956.

AUDITOR'S REPORT:

The obseryations made in the Auditor's Report are dealt with separately by Notes on

Accounts. These are self explanatory and do not call for any further comments.

DEPOSITS:

During the year under report the company has neither invited nol. accepted any
public fixed deposits within the meaning of Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956

and rules made there under.

1 1 . PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company has no emploYees in the

the Companies Act, 1956.
category specified under Section 217\2A) ot

8 .

o

10.

L2 .
COMPANIES (RESERVE BANKI DIRECTTVES. 1998.

The relevaut provisions, for disclosure in the Director's Report' of Non-Banking

Financial Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998 issued by the Resewe Bank of

India are not applicable, as the Company is not holding any public deposits'

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

\..5* ,DU^"^"
Authoris€d Signatory/Direclor

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd.

, { L  " ,

Au thorised Signatory/Direclor

Indian lnfo bftware Ltd.

,:-a-L/

Auth( ttory/Director
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

Part A and part B of the Particulars required to be furnished under the companies
(disclosure of particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are Nil.
There were no foreign exchange earnings and out go during the year.

DIRECTOR.S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 2I7 I2AAI of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors confirm
that:
in the presentation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards
have been follo*'ed and that no material departures have been made from the same,

the Directors had selected such Accounting policies and applied them consistently
and judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year

and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities, and,

The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis

L+.

b)

d)

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD,

PLACE; MUMBAI
DATE : AUGUST 27rH ,2OL2

OHUNTA
MANAGING DIRECTOR

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Statements of Particulars under Companies (Disclosure of pafticulars in the Report of

Board of Directors) Rules' 1988.

B.

C.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

FOREIGN trXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Not Applicable.

Not Applicable.

Rs.  NIL

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD'

lndian Infotech and Softlvare Ltd.

PLACE ; MUMBAI
DATE : AUGUST 27rt, 2OL2

lndian lnfotech and Soft/vare Ltd' Indian Infotech and Soft/vare Ltd.

D-t" &"-nt"--
Authorised Signatory/Director
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance:

Your Company is fully committed to the principles of transparency, integrity and
accountability in all spheres of its operations and has been practicing the principles
of good corporate governance over the years, In keeping wjth this commitment, your
Company has been upholding fair and ethical business and corporate practices and
transparency in its dealings and continuously endeavours to review strengthen and
upgrade its systems and procedures so as to bring in transparencl, and efficiency in
its rzarious business segments.

Your Board of Directors present the Corporate Governalce Report for the year 20 1 1-
12 based on the disclosure requirement under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
existing as on 31"t March, 2012.

2. Board of Directors:

The board of directors was properly constituted as per clause a9 I(A) of the Listing
Agreement. During the 5'ear under report there were four directors upto October
25i1'. 201i, Shri N. I{. Pareek r,vas Executive Director and Shri R M I{handeltval u'as
the non executive director and Shri G. K. Joshi and Shri. Surendra Rao rvere
Independent Directors.

On October 251h,2011 Shri R. M. Khandelu'al non executive director, Shri G K.
Joshi - Independent Director and Shri. Surendra Rao - Independent Director
resigned from the Board.

Three New Director namely Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma and Shri Suresh Chandra
Sharma were appointed as Add. Director'

Shri Shyam Sundar Sharma appointed as an additional Director on O2lL2|2OI2'
Ms. Deepa Dalmia, as an Additional Director of the Company on 17 ll2l207l &
Ms.Varsha Murarka as an additional Director of the Company on 14l02l2072'

Shri Shyam Sundar Sharma, Director of the Company resigned from the Board on

f7 / 72 l2oll and Shri Suresh Chandra Sharma, Director of the Company resigned
from the Board on 14/02/2012.

Shri Ruchir Mohunta was appointed as Add. Diretor/ Managing Director on

2s I  ro  12011.

The Composition of Board of Directors is as under:

lnd ia rr

= ->'qr. d.^I^^$ -D"*7
Authorise6 Sionatorv,/Director

Name of
Director

Category No.of
Board

Meeting
s

attende
d

during
2 0 r 7 -

1,2

Whether
attended
last AGM

No of
other-

directorship

No of
membership

of audit
commrttee
and Share
Holders &
Investors
Grievance

Committee ln
other

Companies

Chairmans
hip of audit
committee
and Share
Holders &
Investors
Grievance
Committee

in other
Companies

Shri N. K.
Pareek

Executive
Director

4 Yes 2 1 Nil

Shri G. K.
Joshi

Independent
Director

4 Yes 4 I 2

and Software Ltd. and Software Ltd. lndian lnfotechand Software

Ar rthorised Si.rnelorv/Dire.J.!r
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(details are as on 31st March, 2072)
N o t e :

* Excludes alternat d.irectorship and Directorship and directorship in forgien
companies and private companies which are neither a subsidiary nor a holding company
of a public Company.

n Excludes Committees other than Audit Committee and Shareholders'/ InYestors'
Grievance Committee and Companies other than public limited companies.

DATES AND NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD

During the financial year ended 31"t March, 2072, I (Eight) Meetings of the Board of

Di rectors r tere held as on 29/04/2ol l ,  061061201'1,  29107 12011'  2511012OI1 '
2 7  l r o l 2 0 1 . r ,  0 2 l \ 2 l 2 o I r ,  1 7  l 1 2 l 2 0 7 I  a n d  7 4 l 0 2 l 2 a r 2

The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all the las's applicable to the company
and has put in place procedures to review steps to be taken by the Company to rectify

instances of non compliance, if any.

In terms of the provisions of clause 49 oI the Listing Agreement and contemporary practrces

of good corporate Governance, the Board has laid dou'n a code of conduct for all Board

members and senior management of the Company The Board of Directors have also

adopted Revised code of conduct in its Meeting held on 291r'January, 2009 A11 the Boald

members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the said

Revised Code.

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

-+. O"-t "-e
Authorised Signatory/Director

lndian lnfotech and $ftware LfL

2 t ,
-llrch+

Authorised Signatory/Dkedor

tndian Infotech and Softivare Ltd.

K P
AutnorlGi Direclor

Shri Surendra
Rao

Independent
Director

4 Yes Nil Nit Nil

Shri R.M.
Khandehval

Non Excutive
Director

4 Yes 2 2 Nit

Shri Ruchir
Mohunta

Executive
Director/
Managing

director

5 No
Nil Nil Nit

Shri Kamal

Sharma

Non-
Executive
Director

5 No Nil Nil Nil

Shri Suresh
Chandra
Sharma

Non
Executive
Director

3 No Ni l Ni l Ni l

Shri Shyam
Sundar
Sharrrra

Independent
Director

No 1 Nil Nit

Ms. Deepa
Dalmia

Independent
Director

I No Nit Nil Nil

Ms. Varsha
Murarka

Independent
Director

1 No 1 NiI Nil



Board Committees

The Board has constituted the followine Committees of Directors;

INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE,LTD.

1. Shri. G. K. Joshi,
2. Shri. R. M. khandelwal,
3. Shri. Surendra Rao,

1. Ms. Varsha Murarka,
2. Ms. Deepa Dalmia,
3. Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma,

SOTH ANNUAL REPORT 2OII-2OT2

(a) Audit Committee:

Terms of Reference

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee covers areas mentioned
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Section 2924 of the Companies
Act, 1956, besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors.

Composition

The Audit Committee np Io 25 I 70 l20 1 1 consists of as follorvs:

11

From this particular date of 1410212012 the Audit Committee reconstituted as
follows:

Chairman
Member
Member

Chairman
Member
Member

The Composition of Audit Committee is in conformity with Clause 49 II (A) of
the Listing Agreement.

A brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is as
follows:

To review Internal Audit Reports, Statutory Auditors' Report on the financial
statements, to generally interact $'ith the Internal Auditors and Statutory
Auditors, to review the adequacy of internal control systems, to select and
establish accounting policies, to revierv financial statements before submission
to the Board, to recommend the appointment and removal of external auditor
and flxation of audit fees and other matters specified under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement and Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

During the 2011-72 under review 4(Four) meetings of the Audit Committee
were held, on 29 1 04 1 20 17, 27 l 07 l 2OrI, 25 l L0 l 20 I l and 14 l 02 l 20 12.

The attendances of members are as follows;

Name Category Meetings during the Year 2O1I-12

Held Attended

Shri. G. K. Joshi, Chairman 4 3
Shri. R. M. khandelwal, Member 4 3
Shri. Surendra Rao, Member 4 3
Ms. Varsha Murarka, Chairman 4 I

Ms. Deepa Dalmia, Member 4 i

Shri Kamal Nayan
Sharma

Member 4 1

l,^dian lnfotech and Sot vare Ltd'

=i> -re* &4" ;s
Authorised Signatory/Diredor

lndian Infotech and Softwafe Ltd.
, 2  . ,

"t*rt
Authoris6d Signatory/Director

Indian Infotech and Sofi\,vare Ltd.
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Share Transfer & Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee:

Terms of references

To scrutinDe and approve registration of transfer of shares / debentures /
warrants issued / to be issued by the company.
To exercise all power conferred on the Board of Directors under Article 43 of the
Article of Association.
To decide all questions and matters that may arise in regard to transmission of
shares / debentures / rvarrants issued / to be issued by the Companl'.
To approve and issue duplicate shares / debentures / warrants certificates in
lieu of those reported lost,
To refer to the Board and any proposal of refusal of registration of transfer of
shares / debentures / warrants for their consideration.
To look into shareholders and investors complaints like transfer of shares, non-
receipt of declared dividends, etc., and
To delegate all or any of its porver of Officers / Authorized Signatories of the
Company.

a, Composition

The Share Transfer & Sharel-rolders/Investors'Grievance Committee up to
25 I I0 l2Oll consists of as follorvs:

(b)

(i)

b)

c l

d)

e l

1 Shri. G. K. Joshi,
2. Shri. R. M. khandelwal,
3  S h r i  S l r e n d r a  T ? a n

From th is  par l i cu la r  da le

1. Ms. Varsha Murarka,
2. Ms. Deepa Dalmia,
3. Shri Kamal Nayan Sharma,

Chairman
Member
Member

of 14l02l2Ol2 the Share Transfer &

Chairman
Member
Member

Shareholders/Investors' Grievance Committee reconstituted as foilou's;

The constitution and terms of reference of the Share Transfer & Shareholders'/
Investors' Grievance Committee is in agreement with the guidelines prescribed
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock
Exchanges.

This committee (i) approves and monitors transfers, transmlssion, splitting and
consolidation of securities and issue of duplicate Certificates by the Company;
(ii) looks into \rarious issues relating to shareholders, including the redressal of
shareholders' and investors' complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of
Balance Sheet, dividend etc.; and (iii) carries out the functions envisaged under
the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading adopted in terms of
Regulation 12{1) ofthe StrBl (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992,

The Share Transfer & Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee met
4(Four)  t imes dur ing the 2Q77 72 on 291O1/2077,27/07 l2OrL,  25/70/20rr
ar'd 14 l02l 2012. The attendances of the members are as follows:

lndian Infotech Indian Infotech and Software Ltd.
4 .

L

lndian lnfotech and Software Ltd.
D.4,. &*\-^*

Name Category Meetings during the year 2010-11

HeId Attended

Shri. G. K. Joshi, Chairman 4 3
Shri. R. M. khandehval, Member 4 3
Shri. Surendra Rao, Member 4 3
Ms. Varsha Murarka, Chairman 4 1
Ms. Deepa Dalmia, Member 4 I
Shri Kamal Nayan
Sharma

Member 4 1

Authorised Signatory/Direcrdr
l,( 0q-.': . \.- ,/-

["1
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Name and designation of Compliance officer:

3OTH ANNUAL REPORT 2OLL-2OL2

. CS Nitesh Choudhary

Detail of Complaints:

o No. of shareholders' complaints received during the year
o No. of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders
. No. of pending share transfers

3. General Body Meetings:

Location and time where last three Annual General Meetings were held:

Whether Special Resolutions were put through postal ballot last year:
Are votes proposed to be conducted through postal ballot this year:

4. Other disclosures:

No
No

Related Party Transactions
Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions i.e
transactions of the Company of material nature, rvith its promoters, the
Directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may
have potential conflict with the interests of Company at large:

None of the transactions with any of the related parties rvere in conflict with
the interest of the Company at large.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
In the preparation of financial statements, the Company has followed the
Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India to the extent applicable. The Company has not complied with Revised
Accounting Standard AS-15 for Gratuity and Leave Encashment as the same

are being accounted for on Cash Basis.

Disclosures on Risk Management
During the year under review, a detailed exercise on Business Risk
Management was carried out covering the entire spectrum of business
operations and the Board has been informed about the risk assessment and
minimization procedures as required under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement. The Company has framed the Risk Assessment and
Mlnim2ation- Procedure rvhich u'ill be periodically revies'ed by the Board

Code of Conduct
The Board of Directors has adopted the Code of Ethics and Business
Principles for the Non-executive Directors as also for the employees including

Execulir.e Director. The said Code has been communicated to all the

Directors.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on

the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any

matter related to caPital markets, during the last three years:
None

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd.

: I
: 1
: Nil

(a)

{b )

(c)

(d)

(e )

D--1,. &.1*^"

Financial Year Date Tirne Location
20 lo -20 t1 26 /09  /2or r 3 .30  P .  M . At Resd. Office, Mumbai
2009-20to 29 /09 /2OrO 3 .30  P .  M . At Resd. Office, Mumbai
2008-2009 29 I 09 12009 3 . 3 0  P .  M . At Regd. Offrce, Mumbai

Authorised Signatory/Direclor

lndian Infoiech and Softvtare Ltd. lndian lnfotech and SofuYare LU.
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5. CEO/CFOCertification

A certificate from Shri Ruchir Mohunta, Managing Director on the financial
statements of the Company was placed before the Board, as required by Clause
49(V) of the Listing Agreement. There uas no CEO/CFO jn lhe CompanJ'.

Means of communication:

(a) Ouarterlv results:
The Unaudited quarterly results are announced within 45 days from the end
of the quarter, as stipulated under the listing agreement with the Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited & Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd.

(b) Newspapers wherein norma1l5' published : Yes

(c) Any Website. u herein displayed: Yes

(d) Whether Website also displays official news releases: No

(e) Whether presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts : No

(f) Whether Management Discussion & Analysis Report is a part of Annual
Report: Yes

6, GeneralShareholderinformation:

(a) AGM date, time and venue:

Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday, the 28m September, 2OI2 at
4.30 P.M. at the Registered office of the Company - D- i 14, Crystal Plaza, Opp
Infinity Mall, Andheri (W), Mumbai - 400 053.

(b) Financial Year: The Financial Year is from lst April to 31"r March.

Tentative Schedule

Unaudited Results for quarter ending Jlune 30,2OI2 :146 Aug.,2Ol2
Unaudited Results for quarter ending September 30,2OI2 :14ftNov., 2012
Unaudited Results for quarter ending December 31,2OI2 :14ft Feb, 2013
Unaudited Results for year ending March 31, 2013 :15s May, 2013

AGM for year ending March 37, 2OI3 :End September, 2013

(c) Book Closure period: Share Transfer Register u'ill be closed from
24ft September, 2OI2 to 28th September, 2012 (Both Days Inclusive)

Dividend payment date: Not Applicable

(d) stock Exchanges where securities are listed.

The Company's securities are listed at:

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy To*'ers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd' (Delisting is under Frocess)
Kamdhenu Complex, Opp. Sahajanand Co1lege, Panjara Pole,

Ambawadi, Ahmedabad - 380 015

lndian lnfotech and Sofuvare 16. Indian lnfotech and Software Ltd. Indian tnfotech and Sofrvare Ltd.. n .-P -.F o3lo}I^^,3
Authorised Signatory/Dkector AulhorI sed Signatory/Director

t ,."

Authorise Direclor
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STOCK MARKET DATA:

During the year the trading of the shares of the Company continues shares of
the Company is regularly trading in B Group.

Stock code:  509051

ISIN: INE 3O0B01022

Registrar and Transfer Agent:

M/s Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd.
Unit No. 1, Luthra Industrial Premises,
Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400072
Tel. No. 022 - 28575606128515644
Email id- investorl@sharexindia.com

Share transfer svstem with numbe! of shares transferred:

Share transfers in physical form are legistered and returned within a period
of 15-20 days from the date of receipt, in case documents are complete in all
respects. The Share Transfer & Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance
Committee meets at least every fortnight. The total nunber of shares
transferred during the financial ).ear under revierv were as below:

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 35839900 shares (82.80%)

Outstanding GDRS/ Warrants, Convertible Bonds, conversion date and it
impact on equity. Nil

Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March'
2 0 L 2 .

Distribution of Shareholding as on 316t Match, 2012:

(el

(h )

(cl

(hl

( i )

0)

(k)

(4

Indian Infotech and SotNvare Ltd'

D -** Jl"t*"s
Authorised Signatory/Director

lndian Infotech and Sofi\ilare Ltd'

-/AJe
Auinorisedsi gnatory/Director

lndian lnfotech and Sofhdare Ltd'

' irector

;

No. of transfers No. of Shares

Transfer: 1 0 1 36 18800

Other cases (l ike; deletion,
transmission, transposition etc.)

Nil Nir

Total 1 0 1 3 6 1 8 8 0 0

No. of Shares No. of Shares "/" No. of
Shareholders

o/o

Upto 5000 9,60,770 o.22 291 r5.74
5001- i0000 48,38,330 7 .  t 2 488 26.39

10001-20000 70.88.680 | . 6 4 372 2 0 . 1 2
20001-30000 3 8 . 1 5 . 4 3 0 0.88 t34 7  . 2 5

30001-40000 30.43.260 o .7 78 4 . 2 2

40001-50000 8 1 . 8 4 .  1 5 0 1 . 8 9 1 6 5 8 . 9 2

s0001-100000 1.37.63.600 3 . 1 8 1 6 1 8 . 7  7

100001-ABovE 3 9 . 1 1 , 3 5 , 8 8 0 90.37 160 8.65
Total 43,28,30,100 100 LA49 100
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(ii) Shareholding pattern as on 31't Matc}r 20122

No. of Shares held 7o to Total
Shares

Promoter Group 26,405,500 6 1 . 0 0 7
Mutual Funds and UTI 1 0 , 6 5 1 0 0.246
Banks & Financial institutions &
Insurance Comoanies etc.
Venture Capital Funds 52500 o.127
Corporate Bodies 42,83,685 9.497
General Public 12,364,380 28.567
NRIs / OCBs 70,435 o. t62
TOTAL 43,2A3OLO 100.oo

After giving effect to the merger As per the Scheme of arrangement the
following Companies amalgamated with our Company with effect From
appointed date OL I O4l 2OlL.

M/s Lambodar Nirmit Limited (1st Transferor Companyl
M/s Niki Metal Co. Limited (2"d Transferor Company)

The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss has been prepared after giving effect to
Assets and Liabilities of amalgamated Companies with our Company.

(1) Address for correspondence:

The Company's Registered Ofltce is situated at -

INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LTD.
D - 114, Crystal Plaza, Opp. Infinity Ma1l, Andheri (w), Mumbai - 400 053.
Tel. No. 022 - 42956833,
Email Id - indialinfotechsoftwar@yahoo.com

Any Correspondence by the shareholders should be addressed either to
Registered Office at above address or Registrar/ Share Transfer Agents

Non-Mandatorv Requltements:

(al

(bl

(c l

Office of the Chairman of the Board:
The Company does not defray the secretarial expenses of the Chairman's
office.

Remuneration Committee
The Company has nor constituted remuneralion committee.

Shareholder rights- furnishing of half vearlv results:
The Company's Quarterly results are published in newspapers and are,

therefore, not sent to the shareholders.

Postal Ballot:
The Company will comply with the requirements of postal ballot as and when

such matter arises requiring approval of the shareholders by such process in

terms of the Companies (Passing of the Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules,

2001.

Adoption of other non-mandatory requirements under Clause 49 of the

Listing Agreement is being reviewed by the Board from time to time'

\ -4. t["]-"s
Authorised Signatory/Director

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

irector

lndian Infotech and Sofh are Ltd.

',?g ^
""".47

Aulhoris€dsignatory/Director



DECLARATION

As provided under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement q'ith the stock Exchanges, this is
confirm that alr the Members of the Board have affirmed compliance with" the code
Conduct for the year ended 31$ March, 20 12.

INDIAN INFOTECH & SOFTWARE LTD.

PLACE ; MUMBAI
DATE : AUGUST 27'tH. 2OL2

PLACE : MUMBAI
DATE : AUGUST 27ru, 2OL2

lndlan Infotech and Software Ltd'

3OTH ANNUAL REPORT 2OIL-2OL2

FOR AND ON BEHATF OF THE BOARD.

to
of

CFO CERTIFICATE

_1, Ruchir Mohunta, Managing Director of Indian Infotech & software Ltd, to the best of rny
knowledge and belief certify that:

1. I have revieq'ed the balance sheet and profit and loss account, and ali its schedules
and notes to accounts, as well as the cash flow statement:

4 .

2 .

3 .

Based on my knowledge, inforrration a'd belief, these statements do not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact that mieht bL
misleading rvith respect to the statements made:

Based on my knowledge, information and belief, the financial statements and other
fir-rancial information included in this report present a true and fair view of the
company's affairs for the period presented in this report and are in compliance with
the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations:

To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, no transactions entered into by
the company during the year are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company,s
Code of Conduct:

5. I am responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
repoding and have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company per ta in ing lo  f inancia l  reporr ing:

6. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation, rvherever applicable, to the
Company's Auditors and the Audit Comraittee of the Company's Board of Directors
all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of
which they are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be to rectify the
deficiencies;

I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

a) Significant changes in the Company's internal control over the financial
r c n ^ r t i n o  d r r r i n o  f h_ - . . . - . o . . . e y e a r i

b) A11 significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that
the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements:

c) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal control
system over financial reporting 

FoR AND oN BEHALF oF THE B'ARD,

lndian lnfotech and Sofilvare Ltd'

OHUNTA
MANAGING DIRECTOR

OTIUNTA

hdian Infotech and Software Lid.
\ -qr ,["r*1" 4rr.*





Sanjay N. Shah & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Auditor's Report to the Members of tNDtAN TNFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LtMtTED
1. we have audited the attached Balance sheet of TNDTAN rNForEcH AND SoFTWARE LrMrrED, asat 31st March, 2012, the statement of profit and Loss anj the cash Frow statement fo, th" y.ur.ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of theCompany's management. our responsibility is to exfress an opinion on these financialstatements based on our audit.
2 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. ThoseStandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboutwhether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,

nts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
)rinciples used and significant estimates made bv
financial statement presentation. We believe thai

r in ion.
3' As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) order, 2003 issued by the Ceritrat Government

of lndiaintermsof subsection (4A) of section 227 of the companies Aci., 1956, we encrose in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 4 of the said order:

4. Further to our comments on the Annexure referred to above, we report that j
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowtedge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:
(b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by raw have been kept by the company

so far as appears from our examination of the books of accounts;
(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash FIow Statement dealt with bv this

reporl are in agreement with the books of arcounts;
(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement

dealt with by this report comply with the Accounting Standards as referred in Sub-Section
(3C) of Section 21 1 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the extent applicable;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on 31"1 March,2012
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors of the
company are disqualified from being appointed as a director under clause (g) of Sub-Section
(1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1 956;

(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us,
the said accounts read together with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of
Accounls, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the manner so
required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
acceoted in lndia.

(i) in case of Balance Sheet, ofthe state ofthe affairs ofthe company as at 31st March 2012,
(ii) in case of the Statement of Profit and Loss Account. of the Profit for the vear endeq on

that date,

(iii) in case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Date: August 27, 2012
Place: Mumbai

For Sanjay N. Shah &
Chadered
FRN : 124897W

CA. Sanjay Shah,
M. No. 116251

108, l" Floor, Sujata Niketan, Next to Railway Station, Rani Sati Road, Malad (East).
Mumbai - 400097 . TeI :28814240. E-mail : casanjayshah@gmail.com. www.sanjaynshah.in



Sanjay N. Shah & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

1. In respect of Fixed assets:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) As informed to us, the assets have been physically verified by the management during the

year, there is a regular programme of veri f icat ion which, in our oprnion, is reasonable hiving
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(c) There was no disposal of a substantial part of fixed assets during the year.

2. ln respect of Inventories
As the Company is an service provider, it does not have any inventory.

3. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the rate of
interest and other terms and conditions on which the loan have been qranted are not
prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the company.

(b) The Company is regular in repaying the principal amounts as stipulated and has been
regular in the payment of interest. The parties had repaid principal and interest amounts
wherever stipulated.

(c) There is no overdue amount of loan granted to companies, Firms or other parties listed
in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(d) The Company has not taken any loan from the companies, Firnr, Party. covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company and
nature of its Business with regard to Fixed assets. We have not come across any major
weakness in internal control.

5. In respect of Transaction
(a) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we are of the

opinion that the pafticular of contract or arrangement referred to in section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, that need to be entered rnto the register maintained under section
301 have been so entered.

(b) In our opinion and accordrng to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
made in pursuance of contract or arrangements entered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companres Act, 1956 and exceeding rupees five lakhs each have been
made at prices, which are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at the relevant
lme.

d:.

Company has not accepted / invited any deposits falling within the preview of Section 58A
of the Companies Act. '1956 and rules framed there under.

does not have an internal audit svstem.

108, 1" Floor, Sujata Niketarr, Next to Railway Station, Rani Sati Road, Malad (East).
Munrbai - 400097 . Tel : 28814240. E-mail : casanjayshah@grnail.com. wv.w.sat.rjaynshah.in



Sanjay N. Shah & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

L

8.

1 1 .

we have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuani to the
Made by the central government for the maintenance of cost record under section 209(1) (d)
of the companies act 1956, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts
And records have been made maintained.

In respect of statutory dues
As informed to us the Provident fund and Employees' State Insurance Act are not applicaore
to the Company
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable in
respect of Income Tax, wealth rax, sales Tax, customs Duty, Excise Duty and cess'were rn
arrears, as of 31st March, 2012 for a period of more than six months from the date thev
became payable
According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax,
customs duty, wealth rax, Excise duty and cess which have not deposited on Account of any
dispute.

The Company has accumulated losses at the end of the financial vear and it has not incurreo
cash losses in the current financial vear.

Based on the audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given to us we are
of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to financial
Inst i tut ions, Banks or debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans and advance on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other
securities.

ln our opinion, the Company is not chit fund or a nidhi I Mutual benefit fund / Society.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 20O3 are
not appl icable to the Company.

The Company has maintained proper records with regards to its transactions and contracts in
respects of investments in shares and other securities and timely entries have been made
therein. AII these shares and other securities have been held by the company in its own name,
except to the extent of exemption granted under Section 49 of the Companies Act, 1956 and
for certain shares which are lodoed for transfer or held with valid transfer forms.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not given guarantees for loans taken by others from Bank or financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken
any term loans during the year;

ng to the information and explanations given to us and on an overal l  examination of the
Sheet of the Company, we report that the no funds raised on short - term basis have

for long{erm investment.

(a)

(b)

(c)

1 0 .

1 a

l J .

14 .

15.

' :  )
; i *. . " .

16.

108, 1't Floor, Sujata Niketan, Next to Railway Station, Rani Sati Road, Malad (East).
Munrbai - 400097 . Tel : 28814240. E-mail : casanjayshah@gmail.com. www.sanjaynshah.irt



Sanjay N. Shah & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1 8 . According to the information and explanations given to us, the company had not made any
preferential allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained
under Section 301 of the Act.

The Company has not issued any debentures during the year and therefore the question
creating security in respect thereof does not arise.

The Company has not made any Public lssue during the year and therefore the question
disclosing the end use of money does not arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, based upon the audit procedures
performed and representations made by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our Audit.

CA. Sanjay Shah,
M. No. 116251

of

1 9 .

20.

') 'l

Date: August 27, 2012

Place : Mumbai

For Sanjay N. Shah & Co.

108, l't Floor, Sujata Niketan, Next to Railway Station, Rani Sati Road, Malad (East).
Mumbai - 400097.Tel :2881'4240. E-mail : casanjayshah@gmail.com. www.sanjaynshah in



Sanjay N. Shah & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To,
The Board of Directors,
lndian Infotech And Software Limited

1. we have audited the Balance Sheet of INDIAN INFOTECH AND soFTwARE LIMT|ED
('the Company') as at Marcli 31, 2012 and also Statement of Plofit and Loss Account arrd the Cash
Flow Statelllellt for the yeat'ended on that date annexed thereto altd issued our audit ooi[ion clated
Apr i l  25.  2012 t l re leor : .  f i tese f i t tar tc ia l  s ta ler len ls  are the lesporrs ib i l i t l  o f  the Cornparr l  s
nranagenlent. Oul lesponsibility is to expless an opiniou on these financial statentents basecl op our.
audit. ou. audit rvas conducted in the manner specified in pa.agraph 2 ofthe a'dit r.epolt.

2. As lequired by the "Non-Banking Fina'cial conrpa'ies Auditor.'s Report (Reserve Bank)
Dilection, 2008" issued by Reselve Bank of India (tlre Bank) and amended li 'ont tirne to tinre ('the
Directions'), and based on our audit refetred to in paragraph I above and on the information and
explanations giveu to us which to the best of our knowledge and belief rvere necessary for. this
pulpose, we repol t hereunder on the mattels specified in parag'aphs 3 and 4 of the Directions:

a). The Conlpany is engaged iu the business of Non-Banlting Finauce lnstitution ('NBFI') as clefined
in section 45-l(a) ofthe Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934 ('the Act') during the year ended Malch
31,2012 and it has obtained Certificate of Regisrr.ation No. B-13.00221 dated March 4, 1998
from Reselve Bank of India.

o) Based on the asset / income pattern as on Mar.ch 3l,2012 determined by the Managerrent iu
accordance rvith the audited financial statements fol the year ended as on that date, and $'ith
reference to paragraph l5 of the Non-Banking Financial Qltron-Deposit Accepting or Holdiug)
Cornpanies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007, tlle Company is etltitled to
continue to hold such Cefificate of Registlation;

Based on the criteria set forth by the Reserve Bank of India vide CircLrlar No. DNBS.PD. CC
No. 85 / 03.02.089 12006-01 dated December 6, 2006 for classification of NBFC's as Asset
Finance Company (AFC) and as per the information and explalations given to us and as appeals
frun the books of accounts of the Company, the Con.rpany is uot ao Asset Finance Company
(AFC) as defined in Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of PLrblic Deposits (Resen'e
Bank) Directions, 1998 with refereuce to the business carried on by it dr.rring financial 1,s6p
2011-12.

Tlre Boald of Direclors in tlieir meeting held on April 21,2011 has passed a resolution for non-
accepta l rce oI  ary publ ic  deposi ts :

The Conpany has not accepted any public deposit duling the financial year'201 l-12;

Lr our opinion and as per the information and explanations given to us, the Corrpany lras
complied with the pludential norns relating to income recognition, accoul'lting standards, asset
classificatiou and plovisioning for bad and dor.rbtfLrl debts as applicable to it in telurs of Non-
Banking Financial (Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2007 fol the yeal ended on Marcl.r 3 l, 20 l2;

In our opinion arrd as pel the exarninatioJr of boohs of account and lelevant lecolds, thc ca;rital
uacv ratio as disclosed in the return subrritted to the Bank in Folm NBS- 7. has been

ly an ived at and such latio is in compliance u,ith the minimun.r CRAR plescribed by the

has fulnished to the Bank, the annual statement of capital firnds, r'isk assets /
and risk asset ratio (Fomr NBS-7) wirhin tlie stipulated peliod.

o)

t )

108, 1" Floor, Suj ata Niketan, Next to Raiiway Station, Rani Sati Road. Malad (East).
Mumbai - 400097. Tel :28814240. E-mail : casanjayshah@grnail.cor.r1. \llvw.sanjaynshah.xl



Sanjay N. Shah & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

3 .

A

Y"-.!"1: l.: 
*:o:tsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occuning after the dateor our audtt oprnton mentroned in paragaph I.

lhis r:port is -issued solely for reporting on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Direcfions, to the Board ofDirectors and is not to be used or dirttiuut.a toi -! oih". prr.por..

For Sanjay N. Shi
Chartered Accou
FRN: 124897W

/ryDate: August 27, 2012

Place : Mumbai

N. Shah & Co.

CA. Sanjay Shah,
M. No. {  16251

108, 1" Floor, Sujata Niketan, Next to Railway Station, Rani Sati Road, Malad @ast).
Mumbai - 400097.Tel :28814240. E-mail : casanjayshah@gmail.com. www.sanjaynshah.in



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3lst March,2012

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders' funds

(a) Share Capital
(b) Reserves and Surplus

(2) Current l iabitit ies
(a) Short-tern borrowings
(b) Trade payables
(c) Other CurreDt l iabil i t ies
(d) Shoft-tefn provisiorls

4 43,283,010
5 1,603,739,848

6 r,800,000
26,7 48

7 1,621,780
8  1 6 1 , 3 0 9

10 1.624,775,000
13 6,125,790

1,647,022,858

1,630,900,790
1,650,632,695

30,025,556

43,283.010
(13 ,2s7 ,4s4)

22,125

3,609,837 22,125
TOTAL 1,650,632,695 30,047,681

II. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible assets 9 t62,627 S6,4Oj

(b) Non-curent investments l0 92,708 - g2,7OB
(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 51,174 - 63,653
(d) Long-ternr loans and advances 11 18,030,196 11,492,003
(e) Other non-current assets 12 1,395,200

19,731,90s 11,704,771
(2) Cuuent assets

(a) Cunent investments
(b) Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

18,342,910
18.342.910

7.681

a6ry/Di
c[0I

The acconpanying notes are irtegral paft ofthe financial statentents

As per our report attached
For SANJAY N SHAH & CO.

Firm Regn. No. : l2

lndian lnfotech and Softl,are Ltd.

tory/Director

lndian Infotech and Softlvare Ltd'



INDIAN INF'OTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED : 31st March.20t2

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Revenue (l + lI)

Expenses:
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amoftization expense
Other exp€nses
Finance costs

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary
items and tax (III-IV)

VI. Exceptional items

VIl. Profit before extraordinary items and tax
(v - vr)

VIII. Extraordinary Items

Profit before tax (VII- VIII)

Tax expense:
Current Tax
Earlier year
Deferred Tax

t 4
15

1 6

l 6
l 7

161,309
2,564

11,127

150,000
1,123,564
4,2',73,561

502,686
15,064

t  ? < e  t l <

429,162

3,735,141

538,417

538,417

538,417

175,000

363,417

t , l q e

280,500
26,521

17,033,88s
835

t7.341.7 41

(r 6,075,781)

(r 6,07s,781

(16,07s,78r

11,7 46

('t6,087,s2'7)

(t6,087

(3.72
(3.72

600,000

1

XI Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing
operations (IX-X-XlV)

Profi t/(loss) from discontinuing operations

Tax expense of discontiDuing operations

V Plofit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations
(after tax) (XII-XIII)

Prollr {Loss, for lhe period (Xl + XIV )

Earnings per equity share:
(1 )  Bas ic
(2) Diluted

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

363,417

0 . 0 1
0 . 0 1

The accompanying notes are integral paft of the financial statements

As per our report attached
For SANJAY N SHAH & CO.

No. : 124897W
. l l ld lan

T>-a' ,\"lt^^l

N o . : 1 1 6 2 5 1

lndlan Infotech and Soft'vare Ltd'

Aui tory/Director

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd.



CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Proflt before Taxes and Extra ordinary item

Depriciat ion
Loss on sale of iong term Capital Gains
Wnre-off Misc. Expenditure
Audit Fees
PreJiminary expense w/off
Roc fees
Proffesional fees
Finance Costs
Interest Paid
Interest lncome
Operating Prof i t  before Working Capital Changes

ior
( lncrease)/ Decrease in Inventory
(lncrease) /  Decrease in Other Current Assets
(lncrease)/ Decrease in Loan & Advances (current & non current)

Jncrease / (Decrease) in Trade Payables & other l iabi l j t ies (current & non current)
Total (A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Payment of Capital Work ln Progress
Sale of Capital Work In Progress
Mrsc Exp Voff

of Investments
Long Term Capital Gains
Interest Received
Purchase of lnvestment

Total(B)
CASH FI.OW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in long Term borrowing
Increase in Short Term borrowing
Pfoceeds from lssue of Share Capital
Gains/(Loss)in Forex
Unpaid Calls received
lnterest Received
lnterest Paid

Total(C)

NET CHANGE lN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENT A5 AT END OF THE YEAR

l'L6,07 5,181)

26,527
15,969,47A

943,220

(1,393,848)
(6,s38,193)

(?1.8,473)

6,124,889

l7sr,284l

(428,000)
24,64A,526

l7s,969,478)

t,616,637,323

497,423

1. The above cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "rndirect method" as set out in
Accounting Standard-3 Cash Flow Statements.
2. Fisures in bracket indicate outf lows
3.Cash and Cash Equivalent is cash and bank balance as per balance sheet
For SANJAY N SHAH & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

PROPRIETOR
MEMBERSHIP NO.l

INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE I.IMITED

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIREcroRs 

lndian Infotech and softrvare Ltd.

the

'd'9
Aulhorised Signatory/DiIectorDirector

Director Indran Infotech and Software Ltd.
PLACE: MUMBAI
oarc: /l+\, |r'^5"Xt,%ln ,

Authorised Siqnatorv/Director
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INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
IOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH,2OI2

Note No. 4 : SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Authorised Share Capital

5,25,00,000 Equity Shares ofRs.l each:
(Previous year 52,50,000 Equity Shares ofRs.l0/- each)

(b) Issued
5,00,80,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- eacir
(Previous Ycar 50,08,000 Equity Shares ofRs.10/- each)

(c) Subscribed Capital
4,73,38,000 Equ'ly Shares ofRs. 1/- each
(Previous Year'4,73,38,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10l each)
Forfeited Shares
405499 Equity sbares

(d) Paid up Capital
4,32,83,010 Equity Shares ofRs. l/- each
(Previous Year 43,28,301 Equity Shares ofRs.10/- each)

Recouciliation of number of shares
Shales at the beginning ofthe year'
Add : New Shares ofFV Re. I issued due lo stock split
Less: OId share ofFV Rs. 10 cancelled due to stock split
Less : Buy back of shares/Reduction in share capilal
Less : Foffieted shafes (405499 )
Outstanding shares at the year end

Shares held by holding company or ult imate holding
company or subsidiary company or associates of holding
company or ult imate holding company
Equity shares held by
(D Holdine company/Ultimate holdins comDanY

Jayanti Prime softwale Advisoly p\4 Ltd

(g) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 57o

ofthe shares
Jalanti Prime sofluare Ad\isory pvt Lld

Pharma Laboratories Ltd.
Consultancy SeNice p\,t Ltd

25,405,500 26,405,500

26,405,500 26,405,500

lndian lnbtech and Sofiivare Ltd.

Signatory/Director

52,500,000
s2,s00,000

50,080,000
50,080,000

47,338,000

47,338,000

43,283,010

13,283,010

4,328,301 43.283,010
43,283,A70 2',79,115-000
432a3o7 (279,115,000)

52.500,000
52,500,000

50,080,000
50,080,000

47,338,000

47,338,000

43.283,010

43,283,010

4,733,800 47,338,000
(e)

(0

405,499 4.054,990

2,188,300
428,'7 50

lndian Infotech and Sofrrvare Ltd'

21,883,000
4,28',1,500

lndian lnfotech and Sofrlare Ltd 
.., ) .4^ Uolu";

Authorised Signatory/Director



INDIAN INF'OTECII AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
N{TES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH,2Ol2

Note No. 5 : RESERVES & SURPLUS
(a) Ceneral Reserve

Opening Balance
Add : Currenr Year l ransfe
Less : Written Back in Culrent Y€ar
Closing Balance

Special ReseI've
Opening Balance
Add : Culrent Year Transfer
Less : Written Back in Curent Y€ar
Closing Balance

Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance
Add : Cunent Year Tlansfer
Add : Transfer - Merged Companies
Less : Written Back in Curent Year
Closing Balance

Surplus - Profit & Loss account
Opening balance
Add : Net Profit/Q.Jel Loss) for the current y€ar
Add : Trf of P & L - Merged companies
Add : Transfer fiom Reserves
Less : Proposed Dividends
Less : Interim Dividends
Less : Transfer to Reselves
Less : Bonus Shaes
Closing Balance

Total

(e) Share Forfieture capital
Opening Balance
Add : Cunent Year Transfer
Less : Written Back in Cufent Year
C)osing Balance

(b)

(cl

(a)

3s,000 35,000

35,000

1,337.391.000

1,337,391,000

(14 ,17  8 ,3  t7 )
363,417
127,8_85

(13,814,900)

|,013,7_48

I ,013,748

2',19,1t5,000

1,603,739,848

35,000

|,013,'148

1,0r  3,748

(13,2s7 ,4s4)

lndian Infotech and Softitare Ltd'

lndian Infotech and SofMare Ltd'

-E A+
Authorised"signatory/Dir€c{or 

:

Adjustment Account

lndian lnfotech and Soft\ilare Ltd'

TT> .Jg^ {Ilol't^ ^-l

eltt'-o'is"o Signatory/Director *



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3TST MARCII,2012

Note No. 6 : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Unsecured

(i) From Other Party

Note No. 7 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITES
(a) Other payables

(a) Trade Payables
(b) Others

Note No. 8 : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
(a) Others

Income Tax AY 11-12

Note No. ll : LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Secured or Unsecured, Considered Good or Doubtful)

(a) CapitalAdvances
(b) Security Deposits
(c) Loans and Advances to related panies (give details)
(d) Other Loans and Advances

NOIE NO. 12 I OTHER NON.CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Others

NOtE NO. 13 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalent

(D Balances with Banks
(iD Cheques on hand
(iii) Cash on hand

1,E00,000

1,800,000

26,7 48
1,621,'180

1,648,528

1 6 1 . 3 0 9
161,309

150,000
17,880,196

18,030,196

1,395,200
1,395,200

5,866,941
3,548

255,301
6,125,790

) )  1 ) \

22,125

| |,406,624

85.379
11,492,003

18,294,0_68

48,842
r8,342,910
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INDIAN INIOTECH AND SOTTWARE I.IMITED

FORTHE PERIOD ENDED AS ON 3 lSTMARCH,2O' I2

Note No. l0 : Investments
Non Current Investment
Quoted
Novortis indio ltd

Unouoted

Lloyd Finonce Lid(OFCD RS 50 Portly Poid up)
Elchem Soles Corp Pvi Lld

t o r a t

Current Investment
Unouoled
Kaushalya infrastructure dev corp ltd

UNICON TIE-UP PW.LTD

NEWEDGE VINIMAY PW. LTD.

VEDANT COIV]MODEAL PW.LTD,

UNIGLORY DEVELOPERS PVT.LTD.
Logic investment consultant pvt ltd

nartan infrastructure pvt ltd

Passion fln consultant p\.t ltd

Pathik infraprojects pvt ltd

Right visual trading pvt ltd

Round Iink multitrading pvt ltd

shirly real estate pvt ltd

DESERVE FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS PVT LTD

Logrc Investment Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

Passion Financial Consultants Pvt Ltd

Paihik infraprojects pvt ltd

Shirly real estate p\4 ltd

STARGOLD FINANCIAL ADVISORS PVT LTD

BHAWARAVALI FINANCIAL

lndian tnfotech and Software Ltd'

8,2803010 8,280
8,24O

50,000
34,428

8,280

50,000
34,428

190
10

1000
6820

2.75 1500000

10 00 '10000.00

10 00 10000.00

10.00  10000 00

10 00 10000.00

10 00 16000 00

1.00 100000.00

10.00 7500 00
't.00 50000 00

100 100000.00
'1.00 100000.00

100 108150.00

10 00 20000 00
'10 00 18550 00

10 00  21450 00

1 00 50000 00

1.00 30500.00

10.00 20000.00

4,125,OOO

10,000,000

10,000,000
10,000,000

10,000,000
160,000,000
100,000,000

75,000,000

50,000,000
100,000,000
100,000,000

108,150,000
200,000,000
185,500,000

214,500,000
50,000,000

30,s00,000

200,000,000

84,428 84,428

92,708 92,704

3.,617,775,000
7,000,000

L,624,775,0OO
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Note no. 14 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(a) Other operating revenues

Note no. 15 : OTHER INCOME
(a) Interest lncolne
(b) Dividend lncome
(c) Cofunodity Trading Profit

Note no. 16. : ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
(i) (a) Employee Benefits ExPense

Salaries and Wages
Staff Wel lale txpettses

(c) Payments to Auditors as
Auditor

(ui) Expenditure incurred on
(a) Power and Fuel
(b) Rent
(c) MiscellaneousExPenses

TOTAL OF OTHER EXPENSES

Note no.  17:  FINANCE COSTS
i ' " \  TnrFraet  rYhensc
\ q , /

4,123,564 66s,960

150,000 600,000

150,000 600,000

502,607
287

3,620,670

665,960

469,168
33 .518

502.686 280,s00

5 5,000 1 3 . 7 8 8

s5,000 13.788

1t,170
218,000

) t12, 46\ 17,020,097

2,758,2J5 17,033,885

429 8 3 5162
835429.162
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INDIAN INIOTECH AND SOF]WARE TIMITED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AS ON 3IST MARCH, 2OI2

LIABILITIES
Sundrv Creditors
Creditors for Expenses
Cent.al Depository Servces Ltd

S a n j a y n s h a h & c o .

Sharex Dynamic Tndia Pvt Ltd

Creditors
Nationalsecurit ies

Other Loans & Advanc€s:
caurav Fashion Pvt Ltd-DRS

other Pvables
lu5  on  pro l r  cnarge

Audit fees payable

Preliminay Expense Payabler

tds on salaries

ASSESTS

Deloils of Cuflenl Assel :
Deposil

Office deposit-nimmi garkel

loon & Advonces
Advance Against Purchases of Land

ALUDECOR LAIIIINATIONS PVT LTD

Arun Sales Corporation
CHEMAGE LIIVlITED
G D,SOIV]ANI I\,1EI\,1ORIAL SCHOOL

M/S SANJAY & CO
Redrose Synthetics Pvt Ltd
Tds on Interest Recd AY 12-13

T D S O N R E C E I P T S
Tds on Interest Recd AY 10-11

lDetoils of cosh & Bonk:

Cqsh & Bqnk Bolqnces
Cosh
Axis BANK
HDFC BANK tTD

UNLON BANK OF NDIA

ING Bonk

Cheque in hond

Other Non Current Assets

Miscellaneous exPenses(not w\off)

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

26,74A 22,L25

14,015
3,500

6,967

2,206

11,030

11,095

1,800,000

1,800,000

80,000
L,461,L30

19,500
I,62L,780

150,000
150,000

s00,000
4,t68,657
2,538,631
4,804,595
r,329,643
1,881,838
2,608,872

40,246
7,734

500,000

2,538,531
5,057,468
1,329,643
1,980,882

77,646

17,880,196 77,492,003

255,301 4a,842
- 18,281,098

4,646,775
12,970 12,970

7,201,457
3,548

6,72s,7s0 ryjg,en

1,395,200
1,395,200

\,rr* &o;
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INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED AS ON 3I ST MARCH, 2012

Other income
Commodities profit

lnterest Income

lntersest Received

lnterest On Refund Of l.T

MISCETLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
ADVERTISING & PUBLICIIY
ANNUAL LISTING FEES

Bank Charges

Bad debts woff

CO[/PUTER EXP

CONVEYANCE EXPENSES

Bse penalty

Corporate Action Processing Fees

Dp Charges
FILING FEES

GENERAL |l lEETING EXPENSES

Generalexpenses

GRATUITY PAID

Preliminery expense w\ off

lvlerger Fees

Office Exp

POSTAGE & TELEGMM CHARGES

PRINTING & STATIONARY

PROFESSIONAL CHARGES

PROFESSION TAX EMPLOYEES

PROFESSION TAX.FIRM

Share Cerlificate ExP

SHARE TRANSFER EXPENSES

Sundry Balance Woff

TELEPHONE & TRUNKCALL CHARGES

TRAVELLING EXP

WEB DESIGNING CHARGES

Web Registration Charges

Profit or loss on sale of investment

GENERAL CHARGES

Penalty on Service Tax

Service tax paid

MTES & TAXES

lnterest ExDense

Interest paid

Interest on ROC Fees

lnterest on service tax

lndian lnfotech and Software Ltd'

3,620 ,67 0 .27

3,620,670.27

497,423.40
5,O44.4O

502,467.OO

134,836.41
58,394.00
7,393.73

35L,917.00
6,991.00
2,539.00

48,020.00
4,412.OO

13,590.00
t4,784.OO
57,413.OO

148,703.00
428,000.00
110,300.00

4,227 .OO
36,325.00
81,313.00

840,637.00
10.00

2,500.00
20,906.00
54,807.00

(11,095.00)
19,002.47
9,423.00

12,000.00
3,225.00

12,89r.20

638,631.00
27 ,329.00

66s,950.00

12,225.94
43,302.00
1,520.00

370,440.00

360,453.00

9,422.OO
20,720.OO

67,306.00

2,500.00

83,574.00
3,003.00

15,969,478.00
1,100.00

12,000.00
11,530.00
10.081.00
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INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
Signif icant Accounting Policies to Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

1 .

2.

Corporate Information
tND|AN TNFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED ( the Company)  is  a Publ ic  company domic i led in

India and incorporated under  the prov is ion of  the Companies Act ,  L956.  The company is

engaged in  prov id ing f inance ass is tance and consul tancy for  var ious business act iv i t ies '

Basis of Preoaration

The f inancia l  s tatements of  the companV have been prepared in  accordance wi th genera l ly

accepted account ing pr inc ip les in  Ind ia ( lnd ian GAAP) The company has prepared these

f inancia l  s tatements to  comply in  a l l  mater ia l  respects wi th the account inS standards

not i f ied under  the companies (Account inS Standards)  Rules,  2006 (as amended) and the

r e l e v a n t  p r o v i s i o n s  o f  t h e  c o m p a n i e s  A c t  1 9 5 6 .  T h e  F i n a n c i a l  s t a t e m e n t s  h a v e

been prepared on an accrual  basis .  The account ing pol ic ies adopted in  the preparat ion of

f inancia l  s tatements are considered wi th those of  prev ious year ,  except  for  the change in

account ing pol icy expla ined below.

Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Change in accounting policY.

Presentation and disclosure of financial statements
Dur ing the year  ended 31 March 2012,  the rev ised Schedule Vl  not i f ied under  the

Companies Act  1956,  has become appl icable to  the company,  for  preparat ion and

oresentat ion of  i ts  f inancia l  s tatements.  However i t  has s igni f icant  impact  on presentat lon

and d isc losures made in  the f inancia l  s tatements.  The company has a lso rec lass i f ied the

prev ious year  f igures in  accordance wi th the requi rements appl icable in  the current  year .

3.

h Use of estimates
The oreparat ion of  f inancia l  s tatements in  conformi ty  wi th lnd ian GAAP requi res the

management  to  make judgments est imates and assumpt ions that  af fect  the repor ted

amounts of  revenues,  expenses,  assets and l iab i l i t ies and the d isc losure of  cont ingent

l iab i l i t ies,  a t  the end of  the repor t ing per iod.  Al though these est imates are based on the

m a n a g e m e n t , s b e s t k n o w l e d g e o f c u r r e n t e v e n t s a n d a c t i o n s , U n c e r t a i n t y a b o u t t h e s e
assumpt ions and est imates could resul t  in  the outcomes requi r ing a mater ia l  ad justment  to

the carry ing amounts of  assets or  l iab i l i t ies in  fu ture per iods '

Tangible fixed assets
F i x e d a s s e t s , e x c e p t l a n d a n d b u i l d i n g s a r e s t a t e d a t c o s t , n e t o f a c c u m u l a t e d d e p r e c i a t i o n
and accumulated impairment  losses,  i f  any.  The cost  compr ises purchase pr ice borrowing

costs i f  capi ta l izat ion cr i ter ia  are met  and d i rect ly  at t r ibutable cost  of  br ing ing the asset  to

i ts  work ing condi t ion for  the in tended use.  Any t rade d iscounts and rebates are deducted in

arr iv ing at  the purchase Pr ice.

Subsequent  expendi ture re lated to an i tem of  f ixed asset  is  added to i ts  book value onlV i f  i t

increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard

of  per formance.  Other  expense on ex is t ing f ixed assets inc luding day- to-day repai r  and

tndian lnfotech and Software Ltd tndian Infotech and Sofbrvare Ltd' lndian lnfotech and Software Ltd
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INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
Signi f icant Account ing Pol ic ies to Financial  statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

lnCian Infotech and Software Ltd'

maintenance expendi ture and cost  of  replac ing par ts  are charged to the statement  of  prof i t

and loss for  the per iod.

d. Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
Deprecat ion on f ixed assets is  ca lcu lated on a wDV method us ing the rates speci f ied under

the schedule x tv  to  the companies Act ,  1956 arr ived on the basis  of  the usefu l  l ives

est imated by the manageme nt

e, Intangible assets
lntangib le assets acqui red separate ly  are measured on in i t ia l  recogni t ion at  cost .  Fol lowing

in i t ia l  recogni t ion,  in tangib le assets are carr ied at  cost  less accumulated amort izat ion and

a c c u m u I a t e d i m p a i r m e n t l o s s e s i f a n y ' I n t e r n a | | y g e n e r a t e d i n t a n g i b l e a s s e t s , e x c | u d i n g
capi ta l ized development  costs,  are not  capi ta l ized and expendi ture is  ref lected in  the

statement  of  prof i t  and loss in  the year  in  which the expendi ture is  incurred '

In tangib le assets are amort ized on a s t ra ight  l ine basis  over  the est imated usefu l  economic

l i fe .  AI I  o ther  in tangib le assets are assessed for  impairment  whenever  there is  an ind icat ion

that  the in tangib le asset  may be impaired.

The amort izat ion per iod and the amort izat ion method are rev iewed at  Ieast  at  each f inancia l

y e a r e n d . | f t h e e x p e c t e d u s e f u I l i f e o f t h e a s s e t i s s i g n i f i c a n t | y d i f f e r e n t f r o m p r e v i o u s
estimates, the amortjzation period is changed accordingly lf there has been a significant

change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset' the amortization

method is  changed to ref lect  the changed pat tern such changes are accounted for  in

accordance wi th As 5 Net  Prof i t  or  Loss for  the Per iod,  Pr ior  Per iod l tems and changes in

Account ing Pol ic ies.

G a i n s o r I o s s e s a r i s i n g f r o m d e r e c o g n i z i n g o f a n i n t a n S i b I e a s s e t a r e m e a s U r e d a s t h e
d i f f e r e n c e b e t w e e n t h e n e t d i s p o s a l p r o c e e d s a n d t h e c a r r y i n g a m o u n t o f t h e a s s e t a n d a r e
recosnized in  the statement  of  prof i t  and loss when the asset  is  derecognized '

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost  inc ludes in terest ,  amort izat ion of  anci l lary  costs incurred in  connect ion wi th

the arranlement  of  borrowings and exchange d i f ferences ar is ing f rom fore ign currency

borrowings to the extent they are regarded as a n adjustment to the inte rest cost'

Borrowing costs d i rect ly  at t r ibutable to  the acquis i t ion,  construct ion or  product ion of  an

asset that necessarilV takes a Substantial period of time to get ready for its Intended use or

sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset All other borrowing costs are

expensed in  the per iod they occur .

lndian lnfotech andl Software Ltd.
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INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
Signi f icant Account ing Pol ic ies to Financial  statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

g. lmpairment of tangible and intangible assets

Management  per iod ica l ly  assesses us in8,  external  and in ternal  sources,  whether  there is  an

indicat ion that  an asset  may be impaired.  An impairment  loss is  recognized wherever  the

carry ing value of  an asset  exceeds i ts  recoverable amount .  The recoverable amount  is  h igher

of  the asset 's  net  se l l ing pr ice and value in  use i .e .  the present  va lue of  fu ture cash f lows

expected to ar ise f rom the cont inu ing use of  the asset  and i ts  eventual  d isposal .  An

impairment  loss for  an asset  is  reversed l f  there has been a change in  the est imates used to

determine the recoverable amount  s ince the Iast  impairment  loss was recognized '

h. Leases

Where the Company is the Iessee

Leases which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and benefits

inc identa l  to  ownership of the leased i tem, are c lass i f ied as f inance leases and are capi ta l ized

at  the lower of  the fa i r  va lue and present  va lue of  the min imum lease payments at  the

incept ion of  the lease term and d isc losed as assets acqui red on f inance lease Lease

payments are appor t ioned between the f inance charges and reduct ion of  the lease l iab i l i ty

based on the impl ic i t  ra te of  return.  F inance charges on account  of  f inance leases are

charged to statement of profit and loss.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of

o w n e r s h i p o f t h e l e a s e d i t e m , a r e c l a s s i f i e d a s o p e r a t i n g l e a s e s O p e r a t i n g l e a s e p a y m e n t s
are recognized as an expense in  the statement  of  prof i t  and loss on a s t ra ight  l ine basis  over

the lease term.

i. Investments

I n v e s t m e n t s t h a t a r e r e a d i | y r e a l i z a b I e a n d i n t e n d e d t o b e h e I d f o r n o t m o r e t h a n a y e a r a r e
c lass i f ied as current  investments.  A l l  o ther  investments are c lass i f ied as long term

i n v e s t m e n t s - N o n c U r r e n t l n v e s t m e n t s . c u r r e n t i n v e s t m e n t s a r e c a r r i e d a t | o w e r o f c o s t
and fa i r  va lue determined on an ind iv idual  investment  basis .  Long term investments are

carr ied at  cost .  However,  prov is ion for  d iminut ion in  va lue is  made to recognize a decl ine

other  than temporary in  the value of the investments

J Revenue Recognition

(a)  Revenue is  being recognised as and when there is  reasonable cer ta inty  of  u l t imate

Real izat ion.
(b)  Div idend income is  accounted on cash basis '

(c)  In terest  income is  recognised on a t ime propor t ionate basis '

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd.
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INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
signi f icant Account ing Pol ic ies to Financial  statements for the year ended 3L March 2012
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Taxes on Income

Tax expense compr ises current  and deferred tax.  current  income tax is  measured at  the

amount  expected to be paid to  the tax author i t ies in  accordance wi th the Income-tax Act ,

1961 enacted in  lnd ia and tax laws prevai l ing in  the respect ive tax jur isd ic t ions where the

company operates.  The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount  are those that

are enacted or  substant ive lV enacted,  at  the repor t ing date

Deferred Income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and

account ing Income or ig inat ing dur ing the current  year  and reversal  o f  t iming d i f ferences for

the ear l ier  years.  Deferred tax is  measured us ing the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or

substant ive ly  enacted at  the repor t ing date.  Deferred income tax re lat ing to i tems

recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of profit and

loss.
Deferred tax l iab i l i t ies are recognized for  taxable t iming d i f ferences.  Deferred tax assets are

recognized for  deduct ib le  t iming d i f ferences only  to  the extent  that  there is  reasonable

cer t ; in ty  that  suf f ic ient  fu ture taxable income wi l l  be avai lab le against  which such deferred

tax assets can be real ized.  In  s i tuat ions where the company has unabsorbed deprec iat ion or

carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there ls virtual

cer ta inty  suppor ted by convinc ing ev idence that  they can be real ized against  fu ture taxable

Profits 
:d deferred tax assets ltAt  each repor t ing date,  the company re-assesses unrecognlz€

r e c o s n i z e s u n r e c o g n i z e d d e f e r r e d t a x a s s e t t o t h e e x t e n t t h a t i t h a s b e c o m e r e a s o n a b | y
cer ta in or  v i r tua l ly  cer ta in as the case may be that  suf f ic ient  fu ture taxable income wi l l  be

avai lab le against  which such deferred tax assets can be real ized '

The carry ing amount  of  deferred tax assets are rev iewed at  each repor t ing date The

company wr i tes-down the carry ing amount  of  deferred tax asset  to  the extent  that  i t  is  no

Longer reasonably cer ta in or  v i r tua l ly  cer ta in as the case may be that  suf f ic ient  fu ture

taxable income wi l l  be avai lab le against  which deferred tax asset  can be real ized Any such

wr i te-down is  reversed to the extent  that  i t  becomes reasonably cer ta in or  v i r tua l ly  cer ta in

as the case may be that  suf f ic ient  fu ture taxable income wi l l  be avai lab le '

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists

t o s e t - o f f c U r r e n t t a x a s s e t s a g a i n s t c U r r e n t t a x I i a b i l i t i e s a n d t h e d e f e r r e d t a x a s s e t s a n d
deferred taxes re late to  the same taxable ent i ty  and the same taxat ion author i ty .

Min imum al ternate tax (MAT) paid in  a year  is  charged to the statement  of  prof i t  and loss

as current  tax.  The company recognizes MAT credi t  avai lab le as an asset  only  to  the extent

that  there is  convinc ing ev idence that  the company wi l l  pay normal  income tax dur ing the

speci f ied per iod.  i .e  the per iod for  which MAT credi t  is  a l lowed to be carr ied forward ln  the

year  in  which the company recognizes MAT credi t  as an asset  in  accordance wi th the

Guidonce Note on Accounting for Credit Avoilable in respect of Minimum Alternative fax

under the Income-tox Act,1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement

of  prof i t  and loss and shown as "MAT Credi t  Ent i t lement  "  The company rev iews the "MAT

credit entitlement" asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the

company does not  have convinc ing ev idence that  i t  wi l l  pay normal  tax dur ing the speci f ied

per iod.

l n d i a n l n f o t e c h a n d S o f t w a r e L t d . | n d i a n l n f o t e c h a n d s o f t w a r e L t d .

J .Jn N"f*"\
Authoiised Signaiory/Director



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
Signi f icant Account ing Pol ic ies to Financial  statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

l. Earnings per share

Basic  earn ings per  share are ca lcu lated by d iv id ing the net  prof i t  or  loss for  the year  at t r ibutable

to equi ty  shareholders by the weighted average number of  equi ty  shares outstanding dur ing the

vear .

For  the purpose of  ca lcu lat ing d i lu ted earn ings per  share,  the net  prof i t  or  loss for  the year

at t r ibutable to  equi ty  shareholders and the weiShted average number of  shares outstanding

dur ing the year  are adjusted for  the ef fects  of  a l l  d i lu t ive potent ia l  equi ty  shares '

Provisions

A prov is ion is  recognized when the Company has a present  obl igat ion as a resul t  o f  past  event

and i t  is  probable that  an out f low of  resources wi l l  be requi red to set t le  the obl igat ion,  in

respect  of  which a re l iab le est imate can be made.  Prov is ions are not  d iscounted to i ts  present

value and are determined based on best  est imate requi red to set t le  the obl igat ion at  the

balance sheet  date.  These are rev iewed at  each balance sheet  date and adjusted to ref lect  the

current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities

A cont ingent  l iab i l i ty  is  a possib le obl igat ion that  ar ises f rom past  events whose ex is tence wi l l  be

confirmed bv the occurrence/ non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond

the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not

p r o b a b I e t h a t a n o u t f | o w o f r e s o u r c e s W i | | b e r e q U i r e d t o s e t t | e t h e o b | i g a t i o n . A c o n t i n g e n t
i iab i l i ty  atso ar ises in  ext remely rare cases where there is  a l iab i l i ty  that  cannot  be recognized

because i t  cannot  be measured re l iab ly .  The Company does not  recognize the cont ingent

l iab i l i ty  but  d isc loses i ts  ex is tence in  the f inancia ls tatements

Cash and cash equivalents

Casl randcashequivalentscotr rpr isecashatbankandinhandandf ixeddeposi tswi t l ranor ig inal
matulity of three months or less with banks.

Segment reporting Policies

The company has only  one business segment ,  i  e  F inance sof tware development  /  lT  enabled

serv ices.  Accord ingly  the amounts appear ing in  the f inancia l  s tatements re late to  th is  pr imary

business segment .  Fur ther ,  the company renders serv ices in  Ind ia only ,  and accord ingly  the

disc losures under  secondary segment  are not  appl icable '

p.

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd' lndian Infotech and Sof$/are Ltd

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd'

D --V" A"t'*"-S
AuthoriseC SignaiorylDirector

Jh/",,
Authorise4si gnatory/Diredor



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
signif icant Accounting Policies to Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20L2

18) Payment to Auditors (inclusive of sen'ice tax)

Dues to Micro and Small enterprises

There are no suppliers who are registered rvith the company as uricro or snlall entetprise as

defined u'der ,;ih" Mi.to, Srnall and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006". The

informatiolt r.egarding the status of suppliers as rlicro or small enterplise have been detennined

on the basis of information available witl.r the Company. This has been lelied upon by the

auditols.

Related Party Transactions

List of related parties & Relationship

1e)

201

Particulars March 31, 2012 VIarch J l ,2011

As Auditors
Audit fees 5 5000 13788

Total 55000 13788

Nature of lelatiName of related
Key Managerial
Personnel

RUCHIR MOHLINTA inted on 25th October, 20l l
KAMAL NAYAN SHARMA ted on 25th October. 2011

NAND(UMAR R. PAREEK (Res;g l red on 02nd Decernber .20l  I

RAMMANOHAR KAHNDELWAL (RCSi on 25th October, 201I

SURENDRA RAO (Resi on 25th October, 201 I

GHANSHYAM KAMAL SHANKER JOSHI (R..igned on 25th

DEEPA DALMIA on l Tth Decernber, 2011
VARSHAMURARKA on 13th Februarv,  2012
:a--vaNrt pnrrr,re soFrwARE ADVISoRY PRIvATE LlMlrED

Associate companies

SHN-PE C, NPSH STAR LAND ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

@DING ADVISORS PRIVATE LIMITED

ffi n eovIsor.Y PRIVATE LIMITED
HARSIIA PRIME HOUSING MANACEMENT PzuVATE LIMITED
MANGLA STAR MARKETING PRIVATE LIMITED
MAHASHAKTI STAR POWER-BUILD CONSULTANTS PRTVATE LIMTTED

GOURI PRl l" lE nNANCE CONSULTANTS PRIVATL' LIMITED

rr,ratlnsHet<rt STAR MARKETING PRIVATE LIMITED
gHA-wARAwALI slAR BUILD-uP ADVISoRS PRIvATE LIMITED

ffi DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

CT SLOSSOM ML'LTITRADINC PRIVATE LIMITFD

MULTITRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
ITION TIE.UP PVT LTD
CREEN TRAFIN PVT LTD

VA FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

{i.

Indian Infotech and Software Ltd'

5--J.r..!-"L*'S
Mhorised Signatory/Oirector

lndian Infotech and Software Ltd.

-r''fu';
Authorised fgnatory/Director

lndian lnfotech and Software Ltd'

K
Author irector



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED
signif icant Accounting Policies to Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

DHANVARSHA ADVISORY SERVICES PRiVATE LIMITED
GENEROSITY SHARE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
ACS ]NSURANCE BROKING LIMITED

21) Earnings per share

Calculation of Earning Per Share :

20r2-I3 20L!-LZ

tii

lndian Infotech and SoftwareLtd.

"L"fr^\

22\

( i )

Profit/(Loss)afte r tax

Prof i t / (Loss)  at t r ibutable to  Ordinary Share-Holders

Weighted Avg.  no.  of  ord inary Shares for  Basic  /  Di lu ted EPs

Nominal  va lue of  OrdinarY Shares

Basic  /  Di lu ted Earn ings per  ord inary Share

L tapi ta l  Reserve or  goodwi l l .

Scheme of Arrangement

A Composite scheme of Arrangement ("the Scheme") between Indian Infotech and software

Limi te;  ( , , l tSL, , )  and Nik i  Meta l  Company L imi ted ( "NMCL")  and Lambodar Ni rmi t  L imi ted ( "LNL")

under  sect ions 391to 394 of the companies Act ,  1956 for  amalgamat ion of  NMcL and LNL wi th

the Company in to the Company has been sanct ioned by the High Court  o f  Maharashtra at

M u m b a i o n 4 t h M a y 2 0 1 2 . T h e S c h e m e h a s b e c o m e e f f e c t i v e f r o m t h e a p p o i n t e d d a t e l s t A p r i l
2011.

Pursuant  to  the Scheme, a l l  the assets,  l iab i l i ty  and reserves of  NMCL & LNL have t ransferred to

and vested in  the Company as a going concern wi th ef fect  f rom the appointed date 1st  Apr i l

201,t.

T h e a m a l g a m a t i o n h a s b e e n a c c o u n t e d f o r u n d e r t h e " P o o l i n g o f l n t e r e s t M e t h o d " a s p e r A s 1 4 .
A c c o r d i n g l y , a s o n a p p o i n t e d d a t e , a l l t h e a s s e t s a n d l i a b i l i t i e s h a v e b e e n t a k e n a t t h e i r b o o k
value and a l l  the reserves ident i ty  has been preserved and added to ident ica l  reserves of  l lSL '

The l iab l l i t ies have been accounted for  on thei r  book value basis  of  accrual  and cer ta inty  as

\declded by the management. However, as per the scheme the difference between Net asset

] \ ra lue and'equi ty  shares issued to shareholders of  t ransferor  companies shal l  be recorded as

363417 (15087s28)

363417 {16087528)

43283010 432830t

43283010 432830L

o.o1 (3.72J

( i i )

Indian Iniotech and Soh,vare Ltd.

'/Q o

Aulhorised Signatory/Director
Authorised Si gnatory/Direclor

lndian lnfotech and Software Ltd.



INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LIMITED

signi f icant Account ing Pol ic ies to Financial  statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

b.  As considerat ion for  the amalgamat ion,  the company has subsequent  to  the date of  the balance

sheet on 31" Mav,2012 issued and allotted 32,13,02,000 Equity Shares of Rs 1/- each fully paid

up in the ratio of 2 (Two) Equity Share of 1/- each of llsl for every 1 (one) Equity shares of Rs 1/-

each of  LNL in  the Capi ta l  o f  the Company,  and 47,38,56,000 Equi ty  Shares of  Rs 1/ -  each fu l ly

p a i d u p i n t h e r a t i o o f 4 ( F o U r ) E q U i t y s h a r e o f l / - e a c h o f | | S L f o r e v e r y l ( o n e ) E q u i t y S h a r e s o f
Rs 1/ -  each of  NMcL in  the Capi ta l  o f  the Company

c.  The d i f ference between the net  asset  va lue i .e  Book value of  Assets minus l iab i l i t ies ( inc luding

r e s e r v e s ) o f t h e t r a n s f e r o r c o m p a n i e s a S o n t h e a p p o i n t e d d a t e a n d e q u i t y s h a r e s i s s u e d t o t h e
shareholders of  t ransferor  companies on amalgamat ion by the t ransferee company of  Rs.  51 60

crores shal l  be credi ted to goodwi l l  account  at  the t ime of  a l lo tment  of  shares

d.  Since the a l lo tment  of  shares to the t ransferor  company has happened af ter  the end of  the

f inancia l  vear ,  the net  asset  va lue i .e  Book value of  Assets minus l iab i l i t ies ( inc luding reserves)

o f t h e t r a n s f e r o r c o m p a n i e s a s o n t h e a p p o i n t e d d a t e o f R s 2 T , g L , L 5 , O o 0 h a s b e e n r e f l e c t e d
under the head Reserves & surp lus as "Amalgamat ion Adjustment  Account"  This  Account  wi l l

become zero on a l lo tment  of  shares to the shareholders of  the t ransferor  company.

23) Previous year comparatives:

T i l l  the year  ended March 31,2}LL, the Company was us ing pre-rev ised Schedule Vl  to  the Act '

for  preparat ion and presentat ion of  i ts  f inancia l  s tatements Dur ing the year  ended March 31 '

2012,  the rev ised schedule v l  not i f ied under  the Act  has become appl icable to  the company'

The company has reclassified previous year figures to conform to this year's classification'

As Der our report of even date.

For INDIAN INFOTECH AND SOFTWARE
For SANIAY N SHAH & CO.

Chartered
F R N : 1 2 4 8 9

CA SANIAY N
PROPRIETOR

M.No.116251

Place:  Mumbai  I
Date |21tt Sq3"al, z-olze

DIRECTOR

lndian Infotech and Sofware Ltd.

Indian Infotech and Software Ltd.

\ =+" ["]--S
l ir_thorjsed Sjgnatory/Director

natory/Director

DIRECTOR



tND|AN TNFOTECH AND SOFTWARE LtMITED

D-!r4 '  Crysta l  Plaza,  opposf te ln f in i ty  Mal l ,  L ink Road,  Andher i  (w) ,  Mumbai  _ 400053

P R O X Y  F O R M

r l i c f r i n +  ̂ f  , .  , . , .  , .  .  .  .  ,  , i n  t h ev r J r '  ' e r  v r  
B f i n g  m e m b e r / m e m b e r s  o f  a b o v e  n a m e d  c o m p a n v  h e r e h v  2 n n ^ i n r

"  . . . ' . 1  . . . , . . . . . , .  t n  t h o  A i . + , i - '  
t -  -  t  $  l v y  s P P U r l l L

ff6T il lYilff:lfXTTilHu c.nq,ui Meeting or the Compa"v ro o. r,eio on i,il,ilYrliiJJ,"##,"r1;r':i4 :30  P .M.  and  a t  any  ad lou rnmen t  t he reo f .

S igned  th i s . . . . . . . . . .  , . . . . . . . .  . . . day  o f

Fol io  No.

NorE:  THE PRoxY DULY coMPLETED Musr  $ r  oe  eos t r rD AT THE REGTsTERED oFFrcE oF THE coMpANy Nor  LESSTHAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TtME FOR HOLdtNG THE MEET|NG.

.  . . . . . .TEAR HERE .

tND|AN t lvFoTECH AND SOFTWARE LtM|TED

D-7I4,  Crysta l  p laza,  opposi te Inf in i ty  Mal l ,  L ink Road,  Andher i  (W),  Mumbai  _ 400053

ATTENDANCE StIP

TO BE HANDED OVFR AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL

Fu l l  name  o f  t he  sha reho lde r
Jo in t  Ho lde r

Fu l l  name  o f  t he  F i r s t

not  at tend the meet ing)
(To  be  f i l l ed  i n  i f  f i r s t  named  j o i n t  ho lde r  does

Name of  proxy

Form has been duly deposi ted wi th the Compa4ry)
o  be  f i l l ed  i n  i f  p roxy

l '  hereby record my presence at  the Meet ing of l  the share Holders of  the Company held at  the Registered of f ice of  theCompany on Fr iday,  2g 'h Septemb er ,2Ot2 at  4:80 p.m.

Registered Fol io  No.

Sha re  Ho lde rs /p roxy ' s  S igna tu re

(To  be  s igned  a t  t he  t ime  o f  hand ing  ove r  t he  s l i p )

No.  of  Shares held - - - - - - - - - - -




